ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 17, 2012
3:18 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
Representative Bob Ml er

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 266
"An Act relating to the practice of naturopathy; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 314

"An Act extending the tinme period for which the Al aska Railroad
Corporation may |lease land wthout reserving the right to
termnate the | ease; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 314 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 266

SHORT TI TLE: PRACTI CE OF NATUROCPATHY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MJUNOZ, TUCK, THOVWPSON

01/ 17/ 12 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 13/ 12

01/ 17/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (H) L&C

02/ 08/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 08/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 08/ 12 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 17/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 17, 2012



BILL: HB 314
SHORT TITLE: ALASKA RAI LROAD LAND LEASES
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 06/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 12 (H) L&C
02/ 17/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff

Representati ve Cathy Minoz

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

WARD B. HURLBURT, M D., Chief Medical Oficer;

Director, Division of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

KRI STEN COX, Nat uropat hi c Doctor (ND)
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

MARY ALI CE MCKEEN
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 266.

REBECCA VAN DE WATER, Certified Nurse Mdw fe (CNM;

Adult Nurse Practitioner (ANP);

Mdw fery Director, Juneau Famly Health and Birth Center
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

ASHLEY MAY, Nat uropathic Doctor (ND)
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 266.

DI ANE CRYER
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 266.

SCOTT LUPER, Naturopathic Doctor (ND)

Chi ef Medical O ficer
Al aska Center for Natural Medicine

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2012



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

Bl LL KELLEY, Medical Doctor (MD)
Sol dot na, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

KATY SHERI DAN, Medical Doctor (MD)
Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion HB 266.

MARY ANN FOLAND, Medi cal Doctor (M)

President, Alaska State Medical Association (ASMA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the di scussion HB 266.

JI M JORDAN, Executive Director

Al aska State Medical Association (ASM)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 266.

ANNA LATHAM St af f

Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 314 on behalf of the sponsor,
the House Labor and Conmerce Committee, Representative Kurt
A son, Chair.

JON COOK, Chair

Real Estate Committee; Menber, Board of Directors (BOD)

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion HB 314.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:18: 06 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:18 p.m Representatives Mller,
Thonpson, Chenault, and O son were present at the call to order.

Representatives Hol mes arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 266- PRACTI CE OF NATUROPATHY

3:18: 29 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2012



CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 266, "An Act relating to the practice of
nat uropat hy; and providing for an effective date."

3:19: 02 PM

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff, Representative Cathy Minoz, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Minoz, stated
that HB 266 1is intended to place into statute existing
regul ations for naturopaths to nmake it clear that |egislative
intent for the |anguage. He related that the sponsor is holding
ongoi ng discussions with various groups to address concerns of
physi ci ans, particularly with respect to prescription drugs,
while still preserving what NDs can currently prescribe in their
practi ce.

3:20: 42 PM

WARD B. HURLBURT, MD., Chief Medical Oficer; Drector

Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), stated that he had an opportunity to speak to
Dr. Jasper. He related his understanding that the naturopathic
doctors (NDs) intent is not to expand or change the scope of
nat uropathic practice, but nerely to clarify their practice. He
has | earned that while the allopathic profession considers drugs
and nedicines as one and the sane, but from the naturopath's
perspective nedicines refer to nore naturally occurring
substances whereas drugs are nore apt to be ones that are

synt hesi zed. He suggested that sone of the conflicts in the
bill may be due to definitional semantics. He expressed concern
that this bill would expand the practice of NDs to allow witing
prescriptions, even though it |Iimts the ND to natura
subst ances. He explained that about 25 to 50 percent of

nmedi cations normally provided through a prescription are derived
fromplants.

3:23:21 PM

DR. HURLBURT pointed out that pharmaceutical conpanies invest a
substantial amount on funguses, nolds, and natural substances to
treat cancer and other diseases. He expressed concern that use
of drugs derived from funguses and nolds can be risky. He al so
expressed concern that the expanded prescription rights for
drugs that have historically been available over the counter
could increase <costs for payors. He explained that 200
mlligrams (nmg) of Advil is nornally avail able over the counter

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 17, 2012



and is not covered by payors, whereas the 800 ng strength is
covered. He recalled that Dr. Jasper gave an exanple of
capsicum which is a tincture from the cayenne pepper used to
treat congestion although he cautioned that he is not an expert

in naturopathic mnedicines. He related his understanding that
this derivative has becone |ess available to NDs since a
prescription is currently being required. He acknow edged he

did not know the details, but the pharmacist in the health care
service for the Medicaid program identified that t he
manufacturer of the capsicum tincture decided to require a
prescription. Thus he did not think the prescription
requi renent was nandated by the Food and Drug Adm nistration
(FDA) . He said he did not see any problem with the intent to
clarify the naturopathic practices since NDs have been licensed
since the 1980s. He offered his belief that the initial
| anguage in the bill would have expanded the practice in a way
t hat woul d al so i ncrease health care costs.

3:27:02 PM

KRI STEN  COX, Nat uropathic Doctor (ND), provided a  brief
background of her education and training. She expl ai ned that
she cane to Juneau in 1985 as an Ameri Corps volunteer, but |eft
to attend naturopathic nedical school. She spent one year in

Fai rbanks for her residency at the Holistic Medical Cinic prior
to noving to Juneau. She has practiced safely under the current
statutes and regulations for the past ten years. She reported
that she has provided safe, effective, and affordable care to
over 564 patients. She acknow edged the issues with respect to
nat ur opat hy surround | anguage and definition.

CHAI R COLSON agr eed.

3:28:33 PM

DR. COX recalled earlier testinony that the allopathic nedicine
has origins in natural and botanical sources. She pointed out

medi cal doctors (MDs) are famliar with mnedicines that are
considered drugs, but that does not necessarily nean the only

nmedi cine is drug rel ated. She offered that NDs are experts in
non-drug nedicine, including botanical extracts and other
medi cines derived from natural substances. She said agreed
drugs can be toxic and dangerous, but that does not nean that
NDs should not be able to use the nedicines. The NDs are
extensively trained and are the only practitioners adequately
skilled to dispense botanical preparations. She related that

MDs do not use naturopathic botanical preparations and she does

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 17, 2012



not want to dispense allopathic nedicinal types of synthetic
prescription drugs. She identified one issue is that sonme of
t he botanical therapies arbitrarily require a prescription.

3:29:57 PM

DR. COX stated that HB 266 would not expand the ND s practice.
She referred to an article she recently read in the Washi ngton
Post which indicates by 2015 an estimated shortage of 30,000
general practitioners (GPs). She suggested one reason the
shortage exists is because in the US the potential earnings
for general practitioners is about half of the earnings of
specialists, such as cardiologists. She offered her belief that
NDs wllingly go into general practice, since they proudly
identify thenmselves as general practitioners. Additionally, the
NDs enter practice knowing their potential earnings wll be
substantially |less than MDs; however, NDs still provide val uable
services to people in comunities who want alternatives to
conventional nedicine. She highlighted that sonme people cannot
afford to see a nedical doctor so they gravitate to NDs. She
further offered that NDs are in a unique position to triage
those patients and also care for those who have irrational fears
about nedical doctors. She remarked that patients trust NDs to
advise themif they need additional care, such as energency room
treatnment or treatnent by all opathic doctor.

3:32: 07 PM

DR. COX expressed frustration that she nust testify in order to
preserve her |imted scope of practice as an ND. She offered
her belief that passing this bill would help ensure continued
access to health care options for patients and to increase
patient wellness and focus on prevention. She said, "I

guarantee you increasing access to naturopathic health care wll
decrease health care costs and also free up time of the very
busy nedical doctors to see their nore seriously ill patients."
She suggested that nmenbers nmay be interested in a free
presentation on careers in Alaska's health care industry to
| earn about the demand for trained health care workers in Al aska
to be held this weekend at the Bill Ray Center.

3:33: 01 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked for the types of drugs she prescribes or
di spenses.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2012



DR. COX responded that this is hard to answer since her practice
has not been terribly affected by the recent issues, but
expressed concern that the naturopath's scope of practice has
been di m ni shed. She related that the Ilegend for sone
prescriptions is sonmewhat arbitrary. She pointed out that
prof essional product manufactures can place a |abel on their
product in an effort to market the product to MDs. She stated
NDs could lose the ability to dispense natural nedicines if the
requirenent is the nedicine is restricted by prescription by
MDs. She conmented other NDs in Alaska have been affected by
t he changes.

3:34:46 PM

CHAI R OLSON rel ated his understanding that the FDA is the agency
that restricts drugs.

DR. COX said she did not know. She was unsure of who determ nes
whi ch products have a |legend. She stated that it seemed to her
that it was sonewhat arbitrary based on the nmanufacturer. She
said that NDs rely on nmanufacturers for high quality products
and these conpanies do not sell over the counter to patients,
but distribute products to practitioners. The manuf acturer
deci des whether the product will be restricted or if drug stores
can sell them She reported that Ron's Apothecary used to honor
her prescriptions for natural substances that he would conpound,
but at sonme point he stopped honoring them She asked whet her
an herbal conpounded prescription for eczema should require a
prescription. She related that according to the conpounded
pharmaci st it does. She said she did not think her access to
the conpound should be restricted sinply because the statute
says that NDs may not wite a prescription. She explained that
these are herbal conpounded products. She suggested the
restriction is arbitrary and in doing so potentially elimnates
a gigantic scope of NDs' practice.

3:37: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES commented she is struggling to figure out
what NDs can and cannot do. Cearly, the definition in |aw and
in statute is not working since NDs are being denied the ability
to provide certain nedicines NDs have always provided. She said
that she does not want to adopt new statutes only to find they

aren't any clearer and the changes don't provide relief. She
said, "l wunderstand it's really frustrating and if soneone were
comng after ny livelihood I would feel the sane way." She

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 17, 2012



enphasized that the committee wants to specifically identify
what is allowable and di spel any ambiguity.

3:38:34 PM

DR. COX said she appreciated the commttee's efforts. She
acknowl edged that the law is an antiquated |aw. The NDs have
not been successful in their efforts to revise their statutes.
She suggested the approach the NDs took was to nodel in statute
what has been in effect in regulation for 18 years. The NDs
t hought taking this approach would be the |east oppositional
approach to take since redefining the entire naturopathic
statute would be far nore conpli cat ed.

3:39:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER related that allopathic doctors have been
practicing nmedicine for years and other doctors have also
practiced naturopathic nmedicine for years. However, it seens as
t hough suddenly a new interpretation by pharnmacists has arisen

He offered his belief that hearing pharmacists' testinmony is
cruci al .

CHAI R OLSON agreed and offered to invite the FDA to participate
at a future neeting.

3:41: 26 PM

MARY ALICE MCKEEN stated that she is an attorney and has been
licensed to practice law since 1978, but works as an
adm nistrative judge for the federal governnent. However, she
said she is testifying today solely as a private citizen. She
and her husband, David OQtesen, also own Rai nbow Foods, which is
a natural foods store |ocated about a block from the Capitol
Building. She said she is testifying in support of HB 266, and

urged nenbers to adopt the bill. She thanked nenbers for
westling with the subject because this is a problem that only
| egi sl ators can sol ve. In 1986, the legislature nmade a policy

decision to |icense naturopaths so people could obtain care from
nat uropathic doctors. She detailed that to receive a license in
Al aska, NDs either gain licensure through an ND license issued
to them in another jurisdiction, or they nust pass a nationw de
nat uropat hic exam She offered her belief that all NDs in
Al aska are licensed in another jurisdiction. In order to
receive a license, a naturopath nust obtain 55 hours of training
in pharmacol ogy, 1,639 hours of training in basic clinical
science, 132 hours of training in therapeutic nutrition in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2012



nat uropat hic nedi cal school. She commented that therapeutic
nutrition is an elective in nedical schools. She enphasi zed
that the legislature realized that NDs are trained professionals
and the legislature previously nade the policy decision to allow
them to practice. She stressed that this as an inportant
context to keep in mnd while deliberating the issue. The
division interpreted the naturopathic [statute] and passed
[regulations] outlining what NDs could do since the statute
indicated that the NDs could not issue prescription drugs.
Nat uropaths differentiate between the ternms prescription
medi ci ne and prescription drug. She said that this is clearly
authorized by [statute] since it defines prescription drug. She
said, "Prescription drug does not include a device or herbal or
honmeopathic renmedy in a form that 1is not a controlled
substance.” She agreed that doubl e negatives make this |anguage
nmore difficult to understand, but she interpreted this to nean
that if the prescription drug is in a formthat is a controlled
subst ance the naturopaths cannot prescribe it.

3:45: 18 PM

M5. MCKEEN highlighted that the FDA clearly defines controlled
substances. She characterized that the definition of controlled
substance as a very clear term noting it identifies what is a
controll ed substance and what is not one. She offered her
belief the division's current interpretation is that the NDs
cannot prescribe or recomend their patients wuse natura
substances is an invalid interpretation of the regulation. She
suggested that patients could grind up their own capsicum or
produce butyric acid, which is found in butter. However, if the
patients want sonething standardized they cannot get it. She
offered her belief that is not the distinction that the
| egislature and the departnment nade in their definition of
prescription drug. She rem nded nenbers the [statute] says that

NDs cannot prescribe controlled substances. She offered her
belief patients should not be limted to grinding their own
nmedi ci ne, but should be able to get these substances prescribed.
She was unsure what would increase the costs. She reiterated
that sone substances are prescription nedicine and sone are not.
This bill would not increase overall nedical costs since NDs

charge substantially | ess than nmedi cal doctors charge.
3:47:12 PM
M5. MCKEEN shared with nmenbers that her husband, Dave Qtesen

is continually asked for nedical advice since he owns a natura
food store; however, he does not give nedical advice. Thi s

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 17, 2012



illustrates her point that sone people wll not go to a

conventional doctor but will go to others for nedical advice,
i ncluding a naturopath. She stated that her husband suggests
t hose not wishing to see an MD might prefer to see a naturopath,
with limted prescriptive authority who nmay be able to help
t hem She recalled prior testinony that naturopaths also can
refer patients to nedical doctors. She asked nenbers to solve

this current problem and to inplenent the policy decision the
| egi sl ature adopted in 1986, which the NDs have been operating

under . She summarized that NDs have had limted prescriptive
authority for nat ur al subst ances, but not to prescribe
controll ed substances. She offered her belief that NDs have

been able to prescribe natural substances until recently.
3:48: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER expressed his appreciation in hearing
someone who interprets statutes testify before the commttee.
He asked whether she thought, from the perspective of an
admnistrative law judge, that HB 266 will clearly acconplish
the clarification for naturopaths.

3:49: 55 PM

M5. MCKEEN said she was not sure if the question is whether HB
266, in the original form would address the issues clearly. She
poi nted out she works on federal fisheries and issues of this
nature would not come before her in her judicial capacity, in
fact, she would not testify on any matter that m ght come before
her. She then offered her belief that HB 266 would inprove the
situation. However, she was wunsure whether an ND could
prescri be butyric acid under the definition in | aw

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER said he is al so unsure.

M5. MCKEEN stated that she thought the bill seened reasonably
cl ear overall. She offered her belief it is alnobst inpossible
to pass sonething with [ittle question.

3:51:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER said he hoped adopting current regulation
into statutes will clarify prescription authority for NDs.

M5. MCKEEN answered that she thought the bill would inprove the

practice of naturopathy materially. She recalled that the
division previously testified that the statute trunps the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2012



regul ation, but she disagreed with that interpretation, since
| i censed naturopaths should be able to rely on regulations. She

offered his belief the bill would solve the problem the division
holds that the regulation conflicts with the current statute.
She did not think the bill would elimnate every single question

of interpretation, but it would nmake the regulation conform to
the statute. She suggested that that it creates a bad situation
when the departnment does not hold that the regulation confornms
to statute.

M5. MCKEEN, in response to Chair O son, answered she would be
happy to look at draft [|anguage or further testify. She
enphasi zed that she has a deep personal interest in this bill
but she has not been involved in the di scussions.

3:53: 39 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked to place on the record that he is not an
expert. He said he appreciated her help.

3:54: 37 PM

REBECCA VAN DE WATER, Certified Nurse Mdwife (CNM;, Adult
Nurse Practitioner (ANP); Mdw fery Director, Juneau Famly
Health and Birth Center, stated that she is also a naturopathic
doctor's client and regularly refers her patients to NDs. She
said she hoped that sone verbiage would make it abundantly clear
what NDs can do since she relies on themto fill in the gaps of
her own care. She stated that she was trained at Yale
Uni versity to prescribe nedicine and in sone instances to work
with natural her bal homeopathic renedies and plant-based
medi ci nes; however, she will not work with things she is not
trained to use. Thus she relies on NDs to be the experts. She
reiterated that she hoped the commttee could find a way to keep
their scope as broad and appropriate as possible.

3:55:55 PM

ASHLEY MAY, Naturopathic Doctor (ND), stated that this bill is
critical for the stability of naturopathic nedicine in Al aska.
He characterized NDs as primary care providers that provide safe
and effective care. He enphasized that he has only practiced
nat uropathy for two and one-half years in Al aska, which he found
can be frustrating since Alaska is a |imted-scope state in
terms of naturopathy, while Washington state allows naturopaths
a broader scope of practice. He testified that it has been
harder and harder to obtain products he normally has been able

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 17, 2012



to get. He predicted that passing HB 266 would help attract
other NDs to Al aska. He al so advised that NDs have a proven,
safe, track record in Al aska. He asked to lend his support for
HB 266.

3:57:58 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked what types of nedicines he prescribes.

DR. MAY answered that his practice is primarily a famly
practice. He dispenses nulti-vitamns, fish oil, vitamn D,
natural thyroid, and adrenal extracts. He characterized these
substances as safe and effective nedicines and that he does not
prescri be heavy narcotics or pain nedications. He enphasized
that famly practice entails a w de scope of nedicines.

DIANE CRYER stated that she is a patient of naturopathic
nmedi ci ne. She reconmended the conmittee pass HB 266 since it
will clarify the practice of naturopathy and allow NDs to
continue to perform as they have previously been able to do in
Al aska. She also stated that NDs are filling a niche for
patients. She said that limting NDs not only adds to the
frustration for NDs, nedical doctors, and patients.

SCOTT LUPER, Naturopathic Doctor (ND), Chief Medical Oficer,
Al aska Center for Natural Medicine, stated that he has practiced
in Al aska since 2000. He related a scenario in which in which a
patient came to see him for ulcerative colitis. He offered he
has often treated this condition by using sodium butyric acid,
which he has been able to obtain from Key Pharmacy in a
concentrated form along wth applicators. He related the
treatment will wusually stop bleeding in one to tw weeks. He
said that he was not able to purchase the butyric acid from Key
Pharmacy since the pharmacy had been instructed by the Al aska
Board of Pharmacy not dispense to the drug to NDs since it
required a prescription. He was unsure of how that happened;
however, the BOP did verify that they had contacted pharnacies.

DR, LUPER reiterated earlier testinony that one renedy would be

to adopt the naturopath's regulation into statutes. He agreed
the solution seens odd since the weight of law for regul ations
is equal to statutes. He described his practice as one that

includes treating cancer patients, often wrking with a |ocal
oncol ogist to prescribe intravenous therapy (IV) treatnents to
mtigate the effects of chenotherapy or enhance the IV s
ef fects. Additionally, he has also used vitamn C to treat
ovarian cancer. He indicated that it has been nore difficult to

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 17, 2012



obtain the 1Vs. He naned several pharmacies, including Key
Pharmacy, who will not sell to him He suggested that this bil
will help and by allowing NDs to continue to practice safely and
hel p patients. He related that the NDs he knows |ove Al aska
even though they cannot fully practice their profession based on
t heir educati on. He said, "Unless this |aw passes we're going
to have the other hand tied behind our back - at least two or
three fingers - and keep us from doing things we' ve done safely
for 18 years here in Al aska, particularly with cancer patients,
particularly with the IV nutrients, and sodium butyric." He
expressed concern with the concept of developing a Ilist of
nmedi ci nes since nedical science noves and shifts. Thus any |ist
woul d soon be out of date.

4:05:31 PM

BILL KELLEY, Medical Doctor (MD)), stated that he is an
allopathic primary care physician who has worked in Al aska for
about 20 years. He stated he has found the testinony helpful.
He said in his community, that the allopathic physicians have a
great deal of respect for NDs for the reasons just nentioned.
He guessed if MDs and NDs sat down, little dispute would arise
as to which nedicines can be prescribed. He heard testinony to
indicate a hope that this bill would not change the scope of
practice by NDs. He said, "My concern is the devil is in the
details in terns of semantics.” He acknow edged that he did not
have a solution, but was worried since nost allopathic nedicines
historically are derived from botanical sources. He pointed out
cancer drugs, including Taxol, which is extracted from the bark
of the Pacific yewtree. He said the proposed statute literally
would allow NDs to prescribe Taxol. He said he realized this
statenent nay be ludicrous, but it captures his concern. He
supposed the FDA needs to be involved in terns of assisting the
commttee with the semantics; however, he offered his belief
that the bill as currently witten mght allow for a significant
increase in the scope of practice for NDs.

4:07:53 PM

KATY SHERI DAN, Medical Doctor (MD), stated that she has
practiced famly nedicine for 16 years. She echoed what Dr.
Kelley just said, noting she also has a great respect for
conpl ementary nedicine and is open for her patients to have the
choice to select whatever care is best for them She expressed

concern that this bill may open the opportunity for NDs to
prescribe outside their scope of practice, noting her belief
that nost would not do so. She acknow edged the problem of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 17, 2012



working outside the scope of their practice also happens in
al l opathic nedicine. She agreed with earlier testinony that the

words should be clearer. She noted a nunber of nedications are
derived from natural plants that are incredibly potent
medi cati ons, i ncluding powerful cardiac  nedi ci nes. She

suggested the conmttee revise the l|anguage to help protect
patients.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER said the commttee woul d wel cone suggested
| anguage. He offered his belief that people are in agreenent
that the | anguage needs to be worked on for clarity.

4:11:10 PM

MARY ANN FOLAND, Medical Doctor (MD); President, Al aska State
Medi cal Association (ASMA), offered sone concerns about the
bill. She related that she is a famly practice physician who
has practiced in Alaska since 1977. She said she is the past
president of the Al aska Acadeny of Fam |y Physicians (AAFP).
She identified the primary concern of both groups is the health
of all Al askans. She cautioned nenbers to not msinterpret the
lack of letters and calls as disinterest in this bill. She
enphasi zed that the physicians have been following this issue
intently since this issue has the potential to have trenendous
and irreversible inpact on patient safety. She stated that the
MDs have been working with the legislature to help clarify the
i ssue and reach a conprom se.

DR. FOLAND said this is not an issue of turf protection. The
intent is not to change the scope, but is to clarify the scope
of practice of NDs. She stated that in prior years on simlar
bills, the ASMA has presented testinony and data to support the
significant differences in training and supervised clinical
experience between physicians and naturopaths. She said that is
the basis for concern with respect to the scope of practice for
NDs. She highlighted that the goal of the bill to preserve the
status quo seenms so sinple; however it is not as straight
forward as it seens. She explained that the division apparently
has sonme details pertaining to current prescriptive practices of
some NDs. She offered her belief the reality of the bill is
that the |anguage would expand prescriptive privileges beyond
what is currently |egal and beyond nebulous limts.

M5. FOLAND offered that the legislature has the opportunity to
clarify and define those limts. She suggested that the phrase,
"any natural substance" is vague. She related that she asked
regi stered pharmacists which prescriptions this would include

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 17, 2012



and they responded that the list is far too expansive to |ist.
She reported that it would include substances already nentioned,

such as hornones, birth control pills, insulin, warfarin or
Coumadi n, steroids, antibiotics, chenotherapy agents, biologics,
nor phi ne and countless other drugs. She agreed it would be

hel pful to get a list of nedicines the NDs wish to prescribe so
the ASMA could evaluate them She said the MDs she asked about
the requested vitamn Bl2, vitamn C sal i ne, capsi cum
previously nentioned and they offered that those would be just

fine. However, nedications listed by the FDA as prescription
drugs are defined by requiring a prescription by a licensed
physi cian would not be okay. It has never been the intent of

ASVMA or the AAFP to shut down practices of NDs, but rather to
clarify what is allowed and what is not all owed.

4:15:25 PM

DR. FCOLAND encouraged nenbers to carefully consider this measure
carefully and set appropriate limts. In response to a prior
guestion, she enthusiastically supported having an entity
without a conflict of interest make a distinction between a |ist
of prescription drugs and a dietary supplenent, an herbal
suppl emrent, and an over-the-counter honeopathic supplenment. She
identified the FDA as that entity since it is charged to review
prescription drugs for safety and efficacy and dietary
suppl ements for manufacturing and narketi ng standards.

4:16: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON i nquired as to whether as to the nunber
of lawsuits for NDs for mss prescriptions since they have
practiced in Al aska for 18 years. He further asked how many
mal practice suits have been brought against MDs in the state.

DR. FOLAND said she did not know.

4:17: 14 PM

JIM  JORDAN, Executive Director, Al aska State Medi cal
Associ ation, (ASMA), suggested contacting the Alaska State
Medi cal Board to obtain any cases against physicians since Ms

must report any settlenment to the board.

CHAIR OLSON related the commttee would be interested in the
nunbers and years, w thout nanes.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 17, 2012



DR. JORDAN answered that names are included. He was unsure of
any reporting required of NDs.

4:18: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked if the commttee were to create a
list, whether they knew of any organization that could review
substances - new and old - and respond in a tinely fashion as to
which ones are appropriate nedicines for NDs or should be
reserved as all opathic drugs.

DR. FOLAND answered that the FDA's purpose is to review drugs.
4:19: 58 PM

DR. JORDAN offered to provide background information on the
FDA' s regul atory process. As a starting point, he suggested
using the definitions existing in the FDA laws. He reported the
FDA has definitions for the four basic categories, pointing out
the FDA considers anything not a food that inpacts the body is

considered a drug. He listed the categories as prescription
drugs, listed or | egend  drugs, over -t he-counter dr ugs,
homeopat hi ¢ drugs, and dietary suppl enents. He el aborated that

the definition of dietary supplenents includes herbal renedies,
herbal supplenments, vitamns, botanicals, and other itens. He

enphasi zed that it is inportant to have clear delineation. He
offered his belief that there is no single definitive |Ilist
prepared by the FDA However, the FDA publishes a docunent
known as the "orange book," which is an electronic list of

approved drug products with therapeutic equival ency eval uation
He reported that the current edition is the 32nd edition, which
is 1298 pages long and is updated daily. The orange book only
includes the current prescription drugs being marketed. In
order to get a definitive list it would be necessary to exam ne
all of the prior lists. He suggested this as a pathway to take.
Additionally, he reconmended consistent definitions in statutes
such as the statutes for pharnacies to avoid any disconnect
bet ween t he two.

4:23: 03 PM
CHAI R OLSON stated that public testinony would be held open.
4:23:26 PM

M5. MCKEEN, in response to a question by Representative
Thonpson, answered that the mmin insurance conpany for

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 17, 2012



naturopaths is the NCMC, [which was originally the Nationa
Chiropractic Mitual I|nsurance Conpany]. She referred to a
letter from their litigation consultant, a naturopath, wote
that they have provided liability insurance for NDs since 2001.
Since that tinme one professional liability claim was filed, but
the case resulted in the plaintiff dismssing the |awsuit. She
restated that since 2001 there has only been one claim brought
against NDs, but it was dismssed since it was found to have no
validity.

[ HB 266 was hel d over. ]
4:24. 38 PM
The committee took an at-ease from4:24 p.m to 4:26 p. m

HB 314- ALASKA RAI LROAD LAND LEASES

4:26:16 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 314, "An Act extending the tinme period for which
the Al aska Railroad Corporation may | ease |and w thout reserving
the right to termnate the |ease; and providing for an effective
date."

4:26: 29 PM

ANNA LATHAM Staff, Representative Kurt O son, on behalf of the
sponsor, the House Labor and Comerce Conmttee, introduced
hersel f.

M5. LATHAM stated that HB 314 would extend the maxi num Al aska
Rai |l road Corporation (ARRC) property lease term from 55 to 95
years. She provided a brief overview of the ARC, such that the
state has owned the Alaska railroad since 1985. It has been
i ncorporated and operates as though it is a private business.
The corporation generates revenues through real -estate hol dings,
year-round passenger service and freight service. Hi storically,
rail roads have owned l|large parcels of land which they lease to
generate revenue. The railroad industry has been cyclical so
revenue generated from property |eases have helped to carry
rail roads through econom ¢ downt urns.

M5. LATHAM related that the ARRC | eases approximately 2,000 of

the 36,000 acres it owns and the corporation currently holds 260
| ong-term | eases. She reported that 38 percent of the 36,000

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 17, 2012



acres is devoted to right-of-way, 12 percent is wused for
operations, and the remaining 50 percent is available for |ease.
As a state-owned entity, the ARRC is nmandated to foster economc

devel opnent statewide and in conmunities along the Railbelt. An
extension of lease terns for up to 95 years would assist the
ARRC in neeting this directive. She explained that |onger
| eases encourage high-value building construction by assuring
devel opers and financiers the developnments wll retain their
value for future buyers. Qual ity developnents retain their

value for a longer period of tinme and have a higher resale
value, which is good for the railroad, the state, and for
| easehol ders.

M5. LATHAM cautioned that this does not nean the standard | ease

will be 95 years, but the bill wll give the ARRC Board of
Directors the option of extending a lease for up to 95 years at
their discretion. She highlighted that this bill has received

wi despread support and nenbers' packets contain letters of
support from the Municipality of Anchorage (MOA), the cities of
Val dez, Seward and Wiittier, and from various |easeholders and
devel opers throughout the Railbelt. She noted that the sponsor
has not received any opposition to this bill.

4:29:06 PM

JON COOK, Chair, Real Estate Conmittee; Menber, Board of
Directors (BOD), Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC), stated that
the genesis of the bill was explained by M. Latham He said
that this bill was requested by existing tenants and potential
devel opers who indicated they would be interested in devel opi ng
projects on ARRC |eased property if the 95-year |ease term was
avai |l abl e. He explained that the 95-year |eases would give the
tenants an opportunity to remarket the properties to ensure that
the owners the long-term |leases are as close to fee sinple as
one can get. He advised that another reason to extend the |ease
terns is that the underwiting standards for obtaining |oans has
tightened up pretty dramatically since 2008. Therefore, 55
years for very large project is insufficient. He suggested if
HB 314 passes the 95-year |eases would not be the norm but
woul d be an exception reserved for new, |arge devel opnent, or
exi sting businesses that plan to invest substantial amount of
capital in the property.

4:31:14 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 314.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 17, 2012



4:31:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES noved to report HB 314 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 314 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.

4:32:19 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:32 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- February 17, 2012



